KBTG & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of
Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
Report on the audit of the Standalone financial statements

Corporate Insolvency proceedings as per Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was initiated in respect of M/s. Lotus Auto
Engineering Limlted (“the Company™) under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
2016 (Code) hy an order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi
(“the NCLT”) vide its order dated 01.08.2018 and Mr. Ashok Kumar Gulla was appointed as Interim
resolution professional (“the IRP”). Mr Ashok Kumar Gulla was subsequently confirmed by the
Committee of creditors (COC) as Resolution Professional (RP).

Since, no resolution plan came forth, the Committee of Creditors in its meeting held on 15.11.2019
resolved to liquidate the Company following which NCLT on 01.06.2020 ordered the liquidation of
the Company and Mr Ashok Kumar Gulla was appointed as Liquidator of the Company vide order
dated 12.06.2020.

During the Liquidation process, Deepak Industries Limited (“DIL”) filed its proposal of acquisition of
the Company and was declared as the successful highest bidder. Upon the payment of the entire
sale consideration of Rs. 38 crores (Thirty Eight Crores only) by DIL on 28.05.2021, the Liquidator
issued Sale Certificate on 09.06.2021 for the sale of the Company to DIL as a going concern without
dissolution under IBC.

Thereafter vide order dated 07/09/2022, the Hon'ble NCLT, Principal Bench, New Delhi was pleased
to confirm the Sale of the Company as a Going Concern, without dissolution.

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Lotus Auto Engineering Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and
Loss and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view of in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2023,
loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
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to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter
1. We would like to draw your attention to Note No. 46 to the financial statements which discusses

the completion of the liquidation process on September 7, 2022, confirming the sale of the
Corporate Debtor as a Going Concern without dissolution. It also covers the impact of
extinguishing liabilities. The same note addresses the treatment and impact of extinguishing
existing share capital on June 9, 2021, and the issuance of new equity shares and convertible
debentures to M/s. Deepak Industries Limited {DIL).
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

2. We draw your attention to Note No. 11.4 to the financial statements for the period ended
31.03.2023, which pertains to the disputed trade receivables from a party against which the
company has filed an appeal with Hon’ble NCLT for the recovery of the dues, which has been
dismissed. The matter is now pending before Hon’ble NCLAT and is subjudice as on 31.03.2023.
The management has assured us that the amount remains good for recovery and therefore they
have not considered any provision against the same.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

3. We draw your attention to Note No. 47 to the financial statements for the period ended
31.03.2023, which pertains to Non-Filing of few ROC forms. The management has assured us
that these forms will be filed in due course.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matters
The financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2023 includes comparative financial

information as on 01.04.2021. The financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2021 have
been audited by M/s. L KASAT & Co., Chartered Accounts, whose audit report dated 30.11.2021
expressed a qualified opinion on those statements.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

_If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this




Management’s responsibility for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards (AS)
specified under section 133 of the Art. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting recurds in accordance with the provisions ot the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going
toncern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
r-eonditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
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concern. If we conclude thal a material uncertainty exlIsts, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentatinn, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter shouid not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give

in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by

this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the accounting

- standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023

taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023

from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure

B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
.11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

}\Sﬁir ation and according to the explanations given to us;




i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

ili. There were no amounts which required to he transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (”Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (”Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parlies”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

vi. Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

vii. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For KBTG and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Vool
Kashish Bansal

Proprietor
M. No.: 521925
Place :Delhi

Dated : bf‘\(& q i o233




ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report
of even date:

(i)

(i)

a. The Company has not maintained records on yearly basis for additions / deletions made
during that year showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of property,
plant and equipment.

h. Ali Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. '

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

d. As informed and explained to us, the management has not revalued its Praperty, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (previously known as Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for
inventories lying with third parties. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the
management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate.
Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2023 and no
discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed in respect of such physical verification.

(iii) According to the information provided and explanations given to us, the Company has not

granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register mentioned under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
However, as the register to be maintained under such section has not been produced to us, we
are not unable to verify the same.

{(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any

(v)

loans, made investments, guarantees, and securities covered under Section 185 and 186 of the
Act.

According to the information provided and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

(vi) According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not

prescribed maintenance of cost records for the company under sub-section {1) of Section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013.




(vii)According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed dues including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax., Duty of Custom,
Duty of Excise, Cess, Service Tax, Goods & Service Tax and any other statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities and there were no undisputed dues as at
31st March, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

b. Asmentioned in Note 46 to the standalone financial statements, pursuant to the issue of the
Certificate of Sale by the liquidator, there are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the explanations and information given to us by the management, there has been

(ix)

(x)

no amount surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not raised any term loans during the year.

(d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures.

(f} The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or joint ventures. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company

According to information & explanations given to us as the Company has not raised money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans
during the year. However, pursuant to the approval of the bid of M/s. Deepak Industries Limited
(successful bidder) under the liquidation proceedings by the liquidator, the company has
received, during the previous year, share application money and advance for issue of
Debentures from the successful bidder under the provisions of IBC as further explained in Note
46 to the financial statements.

a. Pursuant to the initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process and the requirements of
Section 25(2)(j) of The insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (‘IBC’), the Resolution Professional
appointed by the NCLT identified certain transactions covered under Sections 43 to 51 and 66 of
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the IBC. These transactions were submitted with NCLT and crystallisation of amount / future
course of action will be carried out based on the judgement/order of NCLT.

b. No report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by us in
Form ADT 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government during the year.

c. As per our information and according to the explanations given to us, no whistle blower
complaints were received hy the company during the year.

(xii) In our opinion, the company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore, the provisions of clause

(i)

{xiv)

{xvi)

(xii)(a), (xii){b) and Ixii){c) of para 3 of the said order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of the companies Act,2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standard.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the company is not required to have internal audit system during the
year and as such the provisions of clause (xiv) of para 3 of the said order are not applicable to

the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act

1934,

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of Ir-dia.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Group
does not have any CIC as part of the Group, hence clause {xvi){d) of paragraph 3 of the said
order is not applicable to the company.

The company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. NIL in the current financial year and Rs.
739.11 Lakhs in immediately preceding financial year.




(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year. The

(xix)

(xx)

previous statutory auditor were only appointed for the FY 2020-21.

Since the new management has taken over the company during the previous year and on the
basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 53 to the standalone financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causcs us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the company is not required to spend
any amount as per the requirement of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and therefore
subclauses (a) and (b) of clause (xx) of para 3 are not applicable.

For KBTG and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number:

Kashish Bansal
Proprietor
M. No.: 521925

Place :Delhi

Dated : 0{{09‘2@, 2
UDIN :23521925 RGulzete g &S -




“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f} under “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date)

‘Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lotus Auto Engineering
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls hased on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

standalone financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal fihancial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For KBTG and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Kashish Bansal

Proprietor
M. No.: 521925
Place :Delhi

Dated : @g;@q 3 223
UDIN :23521925 DG Wz L Y& 45>




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120DL2010PLC2:}.0772
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Particulars Note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 | As at 1st April, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 5 3,383.23 3,795.27 31,178.95
(b) Intangible assets 6 - - 1.68
(c) Financial assets
Other financial assets 7 28.93 28.93 31.95
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 8 - - 4,463.27
(e) Other non-current assets 9 - - 12.95
Total non-current assets 3,412.16 3,824.20 35,688.80
Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 112.61 101.77 583.75
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 2,244,37 2,183.50 2,261.38
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 641.55 195.89 202.11
(iii} Other bank balances 13 650.00 - -
{iv) Other financial assets 14 11.14 1.03 8.13
{c) Current tax assets (net) 15 11.79 3.44 17.61
(d) Other current assets 16 387.17 1,357.82 1,614.58
Total current assets 4,058.63 3,843.45 4,687.56
TOTAL ASSETS 7,470.79 7,667.65 40,376.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQuITY
(a) Equity share capital 17 436.00 435,22 435,22
(b) Other equity 18 4,267.89 3,295.67 (10,903.64)
TOTAL EQUITY 4,703.89 3,730.89 {10,468.42)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 2,177.83 - 3,529.62
(b) Provisions ’ 20 3.37 - 10.13
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 - - -
Total non-current liabilities 2,181.20 - 3,539.75
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 - - 32,125.51
(i1} Trade payables 22
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises'and small
enterprises 4.13 - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 3547 28.01 3,844.55
(iii) Other financial liabilities 23 541.69 539.93 11,297.19
(b) Other current liabilities 24 4.34. 3,368.82 37.70
“Hc) Provisions 25 0.07 - 0.08
Total current liabilities 585.70 3,936.76 47,305.03
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,766.90 3,936.76 50,844.78
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,470.79 7,667.65 40,376.36
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-57

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For KBTG and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 24946\

Kashish Bansal
Proprietor
M No. - 521925

Date :05.09.2023
Place : New Delhi

UDIN: 23521925 B4 W Z RLYK FS -

1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ol

Rakesh Kumar
Lsirector
DIN:08958137

Hish

Khyali Ram
Director
DIN:08286490




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120DL2010PLC210772

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

particulars Note no. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
INCOME
Revenue from operations 26 645.88 332.07
Other income 27 1255 1.32
TOTAL INCOME 658.43 333.39
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 28 17.17 199.79
Changes in inventories of finished goods 29 (18.61) 160.29
Employee benefits expense 30 237.00 193.50
Finance costs 31 83.77 0.06
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 412.89 935.96
Other expenses 33 223.14 518.86
TOTAL EXPENSES 955.36 2,008.46
{Loss) before exceptional items and tax {296.93) {(1,675.07)
Exceptional items 34 - 26,450.14
(Loss) before tax (296.93) (28,125.21)
Tax expense 35
Current tax - -
Deferred tax (308.40) 4,463.27
Total tax expense {308.40) 4,463.27
(Loss) for the year 11.47 {32,588.48)
Other comprehensive income 36
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Income tax relating to
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income {net of tax) - -
Total comprehensive income for t'he -year {comprising (loss) 11.47 (32,588.48)
for the year and other comprehensive income for the year)
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 37
Basic (Rs.) 0.26 (748.77)
Diluted (Rs.) 0.26 (748.77)
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computed
earnings per equity share
Basic 43,56,619 43,52,240
Diluted 43,56,619 43,52,240
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Accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN-U74120DL2010PLC210772

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amount In Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital

Date :05.09.2023

o asaes (G W Z L HBES

Particuiars Amount
As at 1st April, 2021 435.22
Movement during the year -
As at 31st March, 2022 435.22
Equity shares cancelled during the year (Refer note no. 17.1.1) (435.22)
Equity shares aliotted during the year (Refer note no. 17.1.1) 436.00
As at 31st March, 2023 436.00
(B) Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Share application | Equity p of Other ¢ hench
Particulars money pendl compound financial Cant Securlt I Retained 1 Inco';ne Tatal
allotment Instruments apital reserve ecurlties premium etained earnings
As at 1st April, 2021 - - 20,945.77 {31,849.41) - {10,903.64)
{Loss) during the year - - - - {32,588.48) - (32,588.48)
Other comprehensive income during the year - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income during the year - - - - (32,588.48) - (32,588.48)
Capital reserve on extinguishment of liabilities and - - 46,351.79 - - - 46,351,79
write off of assets (Refer note no. 46)
Issue of shares pending allotment {Refer note no. 436.00 - - - - - 436.00
46)
As at 31st March, 2022 436.00 - 46,351.79 20,945.77 {64,437.89) - 3,295.67
{Loss} during the year - - - - 11.47 - 11.47
Other comprehensive income during the year - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income during the year - - « - 11.47 - 11.47
Capital reserve on cancellation of equity shares - - 435.22 - N - 435,22
including expenses incurred in relation tof
liquidation proceedings
Allotment of equity shares during the year (Refer] {436.00) - - - - - {436.00)
note no. 17)
Equity component on issue of optlonally fully| - 1,269.93 - - - - 1,269.93
convertible debentures
Deferred tax on fair valuation of optionally fully - - - - {308.40} - (308.40)
convertible debentures
As at 31st March, 2023 - 1,269.93 46,787.01 20,945.77 (64,734.82) - 4,267.8%
Refer note no. 18 for nature and purpose of items of other equity
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-57
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For KBTG and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.
Kashish Bansal /
Proprietor Rakesh Kumar Khyali Ram
M No. - 521925 Director Director
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120D1.2010PLC210772
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
{A)} CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) before tax (296.93) (28,125.21)
Adjustiments:
Deprecialion and amorlisalion expense 412.89 935.96
Finance costs 83.77 0.06
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost (11.10) (1.15)
Impairment in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment - 26,450.14
and intangible assets
Operating profit/ {loss) before working capital changes 188.63 (740.20)
Movement in working capital;
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories (10.84) 481,98
{Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (60.87) 33.13
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets {0.12) 5.60
Decrease in other current and non-current assets 970.65 63.85
Increase in trade payables 11.59 497.13
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 1.76 (660.57)
(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabilities (0.48) 11.50
Increase/ {decrease) in provisions 3.44 {10.21)
Cash generated from/ {utilised in) operations 1,103.76 (317.79)
Taxes (paid)/ refund (net) (8.35) 0.62
Net cash generated from/ {utilised in) operating activities 1,095.41 (317.17)
(B} CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment (0.85) {0.74)
Fixed deposits placed with banks {650.00) -
Interest received on fixed deposits 1,11 1.75
Net cash {utilised in)/ generated from investing activities (649.74) 1.01
{C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of optionally fully convertible debentures - 3,364.00
pending allotment '
Repayment of borrowings - (3,489.80)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares pending allotment - 436.00
Interest paid {0.01, {0.26)
Net cash generated from financing activities (0.01 309.94
Net increase/ {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 445,66 | {6.22)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 195.89 202.11
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 641.55 195.89

Notes to the statement of cash flows

3. Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note no. 12) as at the balance sheet date consists of:

1. The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "indirect method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

2. Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use.

Particulars

As at 31st March,
2023

As at 31st March,
2022

Balances with banks in current accounts
Balances in liquidators' account
Cheques on hand

96.55

545.00

189.03
6.86

Total

641.55

195.89

Accompanying notes to the financial statements

4. Significant non-cash movements in borrowings during the year include:
(a) amortisation/effective interest rate adjustments Rs. 1,186.17 Lakhs (2021-22: Rs. NIL).
(b) Liabilities Written back thourgh Capital Reserve Rs. NIL (2021-22: 32,165.33 Lakhs).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
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Chartered Accountants
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Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120DL2010PLC210772
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

1. Corporate Information

Lotus Auto Engineering Limited (“LAEL” or “the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and
domiciled in India. The registered office of the Company is situated in New Delhi in the state of Delhi, India.
The principal business activity of the Company is “Processing of machine parts” required in automobile
industries and all other activities are incidental thereto.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 was approved for issue by the Board of
Directors of the Company on September 05, 2023 and is subject to the adoption by the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

2. Basis of preparation

a.

Statement of compliance

In accordance with the notification dated 16th February 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the Company has adopted indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) with effect from 1st April, 2021
with restatement of previous year figures presented in this financial statements. Accordingly, the
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015.

The Company has adopted all the applicable Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in accordance
with [nd AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”.

The transition was carried out from Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India which comprised
of applicable Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, other pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl), relevant applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and the
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable and the applicable guidelines issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEB!) (“Previous GAAP”).

These financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 are the first financial statements of the
Company prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1st April 2021.
Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition have been summarized in note no. 55.

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) till the financial statements are
approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company has been considered in preparing these
financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value.

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given
to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition, or the amount of proceeds received in exchange for
the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120DL2010PLC210772
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

c.

New and revised standards adopted by the Company

Effective 1st April 2022, the Company has adopted the amendments vide Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 notifying amendment to existing Indian Accounting

Standards.
These amendments to the extent relevant to the Company's operations were relating to:

Ind AS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" which clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in profit or loss but deducted from the
directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment; and
ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" which specifies that the ‘cost of
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly
to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts {(an example would
be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in

fulfilling the contract).

There were other amendments in various Indian Accounting Standards including Ind AS 101 "First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards"”, Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations", Ind AS 109 "Financial
Instruments”, and Ind AS 41 "Agriculture" which have not been listed herein above since these are
either not relevant or material to the Company.

Revision in these standards did not have material impact on the profit/ loss and earnings per share for
the year.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs (up to

two decimals) unless indicated otherwise.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that may impact the application of accounting policies and the
reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and related disclosures including contingent
assets and contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and management’s judgments
are based on previous experience and other factors considered reasonable and prudent in the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected.




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120DL2010PLC210772
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

To enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant areas of
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that may have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are Included in the following

notes:

Critical judgments and estimates

Useful life of property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate
of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful
fives and residual value of the asset are determined by the management when the asset is
acquired and reviewed at-least annually during each financial year end. The lives are based on
technical evaluation, technological obsolesces and historical experience with similar assets as well
as anticipation of future events, which may impact their lives. This re-assessment may result in a
change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Impairment of property, plant, and equipment

The Company estimates the value in use of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) based on future cash
flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating
results and growth rates, and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The
estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using
a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value. Further details of the Company’s
impairment review and key assumptions are set out in note no. 5.3.

Post retirement benefit plans

The Company’s retirement benefit obligations, cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, inflation, future salary increments
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at-least annually during each financial year end.

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The
evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has been made based on best judgment by
management regarding probable outflow of economic resources. Such estimation can change due
to unforeseeable developments.

3. Significant accounting policies

Summary of the significant accounting policies for the preparation of financial statements as given below
have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements. These accounting
policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing relevant and reliable
information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they apply. These policies need

ot be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.



Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CiN- U74120DL2010PLC210772
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

a) Property, plant, and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can

be measured reliably.

Standby cquipment and servicing equipment which meet the recognition criteria of property, plant
and equipment are capitalised.

Spare parts (procured along with plant and equipment or subsequently) which meet the recognition
criteria are capitalised. Other spare parts are treated as “stores and spares” forming part of

inventory.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all property, plant and equipment under
the previous GAAP as deemed cost as at the transition date i.e., 1st April 2021.

Under the previous GAAP, property, plant and equipment were stated at their original cost (net of
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any) adjusted by revaluation of cerlain assets.

All property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost on date of
transition and acquisition price, including import duties and non-refundable taxes, and any directly
attributable costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the matter intended by the management. In addition, borrowing costs incurred
during the period of construction of qualifying asset is capitalised as part of asset’s cost until such
time that the asset is ready for its intended use.

Property, plant, and equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are capitalised and
its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use are derecognised.

Costs incurred after initial capitalization are included in the assets’ carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to Company and can be measured reliably.
However, the costs of regular servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use, if any, is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for provisions are met.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate components. Otherwise, these are added to and depreciated over the

useful life of the main asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic henefits are expected to arise from the use of the asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant, and equipment include leasehold land classified as Right-of-use assets.




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120DL2010PLC210772
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

b) Capital work-in-progress

c)

Property, plant, and equipment that are not ready for its intended use as on the reporting date are
disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost under
CWIP. Such costs comprise purchase price of assets including import duties and non-refundable
taxes, expenditure in relation to survey and investigation activities of projects, cost of site
preparation, initial delivery and handling charges, installatioﬁ, and assembly costs, etc.

Costs including employee benefits, professional fees, depreciation on assets used in construction of
project, interest during construction and other costs that are directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the management are accumulated under “Expenditure Attributable to Construction
(EAC)” and subsequently allocated on systematic basis over major immovable assets , other than
land. Net pre-commissioning income/ expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of related assets.

Advances paid towards acquisition/ construction of property, plant and equipment outstanding at
each reporting date are classified as capital advances under “Other non-current assets”.

Intangible assets and Intangible Assets Under Development

Expenditure on research is charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.
Expenditure on development is recognised as intangible assets from the date when all of the

following conditions are met:
o completion of the development is technically feasible;
o it is the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
o ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
o itis clear that the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

o adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset is available;

o itis possible to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased when the project is complete and available for its intended
use, or if these criteria are no longer applicable.

Where development activities do not meet the conditions for recognition as an asset, any associated
expenditure is treated as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all intangible assets under the previous
GAAP as deemed cost as at the transition date i.e., 1st April 2021.

Under the previous GAAP, intangible assets were stated at their original cost (net of accumulated
amortisation and impairment, if any).




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120DL2010PLC210772
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

e Intangihle assets that are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are measured
on initial recognition at cost. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost on date of transition and
any directly attributable expenses necessary to make the asset ready for its intended use. After
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

e Subsequent expenditure is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset if it is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

e Anitem of intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the use of the asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

d) Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets

Depreciation or amartisation is provided to write off, on a straight-line basis, the cost/ deemed cost of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, including right-of-use assets to their residual
value. These charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and
are spread over their estimated useful economic Ilves or, in the case of right-of-use assets, over the
lease period, if shorter.

Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when the assets are ready for their
intended use. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date}fchat the asset is classified as
held for sale and the date that the asset is derecognised. Therefore, deyp"reciation does not cease when
the asset becomes idie or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for categories of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets are as

follows:
Category of asset Estimated useful life {years)
Building 30
Plant and equipment 15
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipment 5
Computers ‘ 3

The residual value of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has been kept at 5 percent or less of the cost of
the respective assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each
reporting date.

e) Impairment of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120Di2010PLC210772
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

)

recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. Where
the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable

amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value
does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recugnised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at measurement date. Normally at initial recognition, the
transaction price is the best evidence of fair value. '

However, when the Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it
uses inter-alia valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This categorisation is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair vatue measurement as a whole:

e Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e level 2- Valuation techniques for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

e Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognised at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation at the end of each reporting period.




Lotus Auto Engineering Limited
CIN- U74120DL2010PLC210772
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

g) Financial assets

A financial asset includes inter-alia any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial asset or financial
liability under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Company. A financial asset is recognised
when and only when the Company becomes party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

Financial assets of the Company comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables,
security deposits, etc.

e (Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

o atamortised cost

o atfair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and
o at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the following:
o theentity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
o the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

For assets measured at fair value, gains or losses are either recorded in the statement of profit
and loss or under other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for equity instruments at FVTOCI.

e |nitial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures trade receivables at transaction price, if the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component.

e Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortised cos't

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose obhjective is to hold- assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

o Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
.using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as FVTOCI if both the following conditions are met:

o The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

o - The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI)
on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments at FVTOC| are measured at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, the Company recognises
interest income, impairment losses, reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or
loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using EIR method.

Equity investments

All equity investments in entities are measured at fair value. Equity investments which are held
for trading, if any, are classified at FVTPL. The Company classifies all other equity instruments, if
any, at FVTOCI. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification for measurement at FVTOCI is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

All fair valua changes of an equity instrument classified at FVTOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

There is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains or losses to profit or loss. However, the
Company may transfer cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends from such investments
are recognised in profit or loss as “Other income” when the Company’s right to receive payments
is established.

Equity investments included within FVTPL category, if any, are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in profit or loss. '

¢ Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when:
o The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or

o Retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the

inancial asset.
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On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount and amount of consideration
received/ receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

s Impairment of financial assets

in accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets:

o Financial assets, that are debt instrument, and are measured at amortised cost.
o Financial assets, that are debt instrument, and are measured at FVTOCI.

o Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”.

The Company follows the ‘simplified approach’ permitted under ind AS 109, “Financial
Instruments” for recognition of impairment loss allowance based on life time expected credit loss
from initial recognition an contract assets, and trade receivables resulting from transactions
within the scope of Ind AS 115.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets, the Company assesses whether there
has heen a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. For assessing increase in credit risk and
impairment loss, the Company assesses the credit risk characteristics on instrument-by-
instrument basis. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts
to recognize impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. The amount of expected credit
loss/ reversal for the period is recognized as expense/ income in the statement of profit and loss.

h) Inventories
Inventories are assets:
s held for sale in the ordinary course of business;
s in the process of production for such sale; or

s in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the rendering
of services.

Cost of inventory comprises the purchase price, cost of conversion, import duties and other taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable by the Company from taxing authorities) and other directly
attributable costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Trade
discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase. Borrowing
costs (other than in respect of circumstances where inventories are purchased on deferred settlement
terms) are not included in the value of inventories. The cost of inventories is computed on a weighted
average basis.

Inventories are vaiued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence, if any.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventaries to net realisable value and all losses of inventories is
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i)

i)

k)

Equity share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as Equity.

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the Company’s assets after
deducting all its liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares and buy-back of equity
shares are shown as a deduction from the Equity net of any tax effects.

Dividends

Final dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as change
in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company’s shareholders and the Board of

Directors respectively.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligations to dellver cash or another financial asset
to another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables.

e (Classification, initial recognition, and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds {(net of
transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the statement of profit

and loss or in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, over the
period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

e Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss or in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cost in the

statement of profit and loss.

e Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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1) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

m) Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortized cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the fair value of
the liability component from the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. Conversion
option which is required to be settled by exchange of fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of Company’s own equity instruments is considered as equity and recognised as a
separate line item under “Other Equity”, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.
The sum of the carrying amounts assigned to the liability and equity component on initial recognition
is always equal to the fair value of the instrument as a whole. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to another item of equity i.e., Retained earnings. Where
the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity is transferred to Retained earnings. Upon conversion of the compound financial
instrument at maturity, the liability component is derecognised and recognised as equity depending
upon the terms of conversion. No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

‘Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity

components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortized over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

n) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

e Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
because of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bene-
fits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. Such provisions are determined based on management estimate of the amount
required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received,
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision
... hetof any reimbursement is presented in the statement of profit and loss or in the carrying
> amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

e Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly
within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed based on judgment of management/ independent experts. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management

estimate.

e Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable based on judgment of management.
These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the
financial statements.

o) Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers is accounted for only when it has commercial substance, and

all the following criteria are met:

e parties to the contract have approved the contract and are committed to performing their
respective obligations;

s each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred and payment terms there
against can be identified;

* consideration in exchange for the goods or service to be transferred is collectible and determinable.

The revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation when control over the goods or
services has been transferred and/ or goods/ services are delivered/ provided to the customers. Delivery
occurs when the goods have been shipped or delivered to a specific location, and the customer has
either accepted the goods under the contract or the Company has sufficient evidence that all the criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the amount of transaction price {consideration specified in the contract with
the customers) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is net of
variable consideration on account of discounts offered by the Company and excludes amounts collected

on behalf of third parties.
p) Otherincome

+ Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the same is established.
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For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call, and similar options) but
does not consider the expected credit losses.

q) Employee benefits
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Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
or included in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion as the

related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term performance related
cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount because
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into separate trusts and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss or included in the carrying amount of an asset if
another standard permits such inclusion in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction from future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that is
due more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service
are discounted to their present value.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date, which is calculated by external actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. .

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated

future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. '

The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit
obligation. The said cost is included in employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and

loss.
Re-measurement gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial

assumptions are recognized directly in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur and are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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r) Borrowing costs

s)

Borrowing costs consists of interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described
in Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily take substantial period to get ready
for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. When the Company borrows funds generally and uses them
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation of the borrowing costs is computed
based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings that are outstanding during the period and used
for the acquisition, construction/ exploration, or erection of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing
costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset are
excluded from this calculation, until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing cost ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying assets for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

e  Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year based on the tax laws
applicable at the reporting date and any adjustments to tax payable in previous years. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years (témporary differences) and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible (permanent differences).

‘e Deferred tax

o Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused

_ tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of an asset
or liability in a transaction that at the time of the transaction affects neither the taxable profit
or loss nor.the accounting profit or loss. '
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o The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

o Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would flow in the way
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

o Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognised in
other comprehensive income or equity.

o Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net

basis.

t) Segmentreporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present
segment information are identified based on internal reports used by the Company’s management
to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. The Board of Directors is
coliectively the Company’s “Chief Operating Decision Maker” or “CODM” within the meaning of Ind
AS 108. ’

The principal business activity of the Company is “Processing of machine parts” required in
automobile industries and all other activities are incidental thereto. .

The Company has a single geographical segment as all its operations are located within the country.

u) Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the
prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period
presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are
restated unless it is impracticable, in which case,ythe comparative information is adjusted to apply the
new accounting policy prospectively from the earliest date practicable.

v) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
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w) Statement of cash flows

For presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. However, for balance sheet
presentation, bank overdrafts, if any, are shown within “Borrowings” under current liabilities. Statement
of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 “Statement of

Cash Flows”.
x) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

e Anassetis current when it is:
o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

e Aliability is current when it is:
o Expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
» Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.

y) Recent pronouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective

On 31st March, 2023, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has made certain amendments to existing
Indian Accounting Standards vide Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023.

These amendments to the extent relevant to the Company's operations include amendment to:

e Ind AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” which requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies,

e Ind AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” which has introduced a
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4.1

e Further, consequential amendments with respect to the concept of material accounting policies
have also been made In Ind AS 107 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" and Ind AS 34 “Interim

Financial Reporting”.

There are other amendments in various standards including Ind AS 101 "First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards", Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations, Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments" Ind AS
115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes” which has narrowed the scope
of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences and Ind AS 102 “Share-based Payment” which have not been listed
herein above since these are either not material or relevant to the Company.

Even though the Company will evaluate the impact of above, these amendments as such are not vital
in nature and are not likely to have material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and key sources of estimation and
uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the measurement principle
of Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Differences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the
results are known / materialized and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimation, uncertainty
and critical judgments and the use of assumptions in the financial statements have been
disclosed below. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the Balance Sheet date, that have a significant risk ‘of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:

Depreciation / Amortization and Impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment /
Intangible assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets are depreciated/ amortized on Straight
Line Basis/Written Down Value Basis over the estimated useful lives (or lease term, if shorter)
in accordance with Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, taking into account the estimated
residual value, wherever applicable. The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortization and amount
of impairment expense to be recorded during any reporting period. This reassessment may
result in change estimated in future periods
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

%

cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use the estimated future cash flows
are discounted using pre-tax discount rate which reflect the current assessment of time value
of money. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market realisations are
considered or otherwise in absence of such transactions appropriate valuations are adopted.

Arrangements containing leases and classification of leases

The Company enters into service / hiring arrangements for various assets / services. The
determination of lease and classification of the service / hiring arrangement as a finance
lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not
limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to
purchase and estimated probability of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to
the asset’s economic life, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments to fair
value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

impairment allowances on trade receivables

The Company evaluates whether there is any objective evidence that trade receivables are
impaired and determines the amount of impairment allowance as a result of the inability of
the customers to make required payments. The Company bases the estimates on the ageing
of the trade receivables balance, credit-worthiness of the trade receivables and historical
write-off experience. If the financial conditions of the trade receivable were to detenorate,
actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determination of taxability of certain income and
deductibility of certain expenses during the estimation of the provision for income taxes.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Critical estimate of the DBO involves a number of critical underlying assumptions such as
standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate, anticipation of future salary increases
etc. as estimated by Independent Actuary appointed for this purpose by the Management.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
defined benefit expenses.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there
will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount
of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of
the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change.

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations/ against the Company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities and estimation for contingencies are
ewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.
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§  Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Land- right of use Idi Plant and equi t | Furniture and fixtures|  Office equi| t Comg Total

Gross carrying amount {Deemed cost)

{Refer note no. 5.2) .
As at 31st March, 2021 1,562.99 5,727.95 23,860.06 21.63 0.99 533 31,178.95
- - - 0.74 0.74

Additions during the year -

Disposal/ adjustments during the year -
As at 31st March, 2022 1,562.99 5,727.95 23,860.06 21.63 0.99 6.07 31,179.69
Additions during the year - - - - 0.85 0.85
Disposal/ adjustments during the year - - . - -
As at 31st March, 2023 1,562.99 5,727.95 23,860.06 21.63 0.99 6.92 31,180.54

Accumulated impairment

As at 31st March, 2021 .
Additions during the year {Refer note no. - 5,025.19 21,413.86 7.37 0.49 155 26,448.46

5.3)

Disposal/ adjustments during the year - - -
As at 31st March, 2022 - 5,025.19 21,413.86 7.37 0.49 1.55 26,448.46

Additions during the year - - - -

Disposal/ adjustments during the year -
As 8t 31st March, 2023 - 5,025.19 21,413.86 737 0.49 | % 26,448.46 |

Accumulated depreciation

AS$ at 318t Mareh, 2021 - .
Additions during the year 23.95 70.35 833.09 6.57 0.20 1.80 935.96
Disposal/ adjustments during the year . - . - - -

As at 31st March, 2022 23.95 70.35 833,09 6.57 0.20 180 935.96
Additions during the year 2395 30.04 350.88 5.88 0.23 191 412.89

Disposal/ adjustments during the year - - .
As at 31st March, 2023 47.90 100.39 1,183.97 12.45 0.43 3.71 1,348.85

Net carrying amount
As at 31st March, 2021 1,562.99 5,727.95 23,860.06 21.63 0.99 5.33 31,178.95

As at 31st March, 2022 1,539.04 632.41 161311 ’ 7.69 n.30 272 3,795.27
As at 31st March, 2023 1,515.09 602.37 1,262.23 1.81 0.07 1.66 3,383.23

5.1 The title/ lease deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company
The Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all property, plant and equipment under the previous GAAP as deemed cost as at the transition date i.e., 1st April, 2021, as adjusted for the effect

5.2
of depreciation on [and- right of use as per the provisions of Ind AS 116 "Leases". Under the previous GAAP, property, plant and equipment were stated at their original cost (net of accumutated depreciation
and impairment, if any). :

5.3 During the year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company had recognised an impairment loss against property, plant and equipment and intangible assets aggregating to Rs. 26,450.14 Lakhs {includes Rs. 1.68

Lakhs in respect of intangible assets {refer note no. 6)) and disclosed as exceptional items. Pursuant to the admission to Corporate insolvency Resolution Process (*CIRP“) and subsequent liquidation
proceedings, the liquidation value of the assets was assessed to be substantially lower than the carrying value. Further, the Company had incurred losses in past and still has limited visibiiity of new business,
where these plant and equipment can be effectively utilised, at favourable or commercially feasible terms. With these indicators, the Company has carried out an impairment assessment of its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. For the purpose of impairment assessment, the Company’s business was divided into one cash generating units (CGUs) comprising of one plant situated at Bhiwadi which
was capable of generating independent cash flows. All the corporate assets had been allocated to such CGU since they independently did not meet the definition of CGU. The Impairment test was carried out
by comparing the carrying values with recoverable amounts for CGU. For this, the recoverable amount had been determined as higher of value in use and net selling price (NSP). Value in use had been
determined by foilowing the discounted cash flcw technique. NSP was determined as follows:

(i) Land and Building: Falr value of buildings and leasehold interest in land has been considered based on fair market vaiue {FMV) as on 9th June, 2021 i.e. date of issue of sale certificate by the erstwhile

Liquidator. .
(i} Praperty, plant & equipment (other than land and buflding): Fair values have been determined using replacement cost approach that reflects the amount that would be required currently to replace the

service capacity of an asset, adjusted for obsolescence, wear and tear (“current replacement cost’) as on 9th June, 2021 i.e. date of issue of sale certificate.
(iii) Other fixed assets (property, plant and equlpment) viz. Furniture, Office Equipment and Computers have been shown at the expected selling value of the same as per the best estimates of the

management,

54  Refer note na. 19.2 for details of charge created against property, plant and equipment of the Company.

6 Intanglble assets

C software Total

Particulars
Graoss carrylng amount (Deemed cost) {Refer note no. 6.1}

As at 31st March, 2021 1.68 1.68
Additions during the year

Disposal/ adjustments during the year -
As at 31st March, 2022 ) 1.68 1.68
Additions during the year

Disposal/ adjustments during the year - -
As at 31st March, 2023 1.68 1.68

Accumulated impairment

As at 31st March, 2021 - «
Additions during the year (Refer note no. 5.3) 1.68 168
Disposal/ adjustments during the year

As at 31st March, 2022 1.68 1.68
Additions during the year
Disposal/ adjustments during the year

As at 31st March, 2023 1.68 1.6B

Accumulated amortisation

As at 31st March, 2021

Additions during the year

Disposal/ adjustments during the year
As at 31st March, 2022

Additions during the year

Disposal/ adjustments during the year
As at 31st March, 2023

Net carrying amount .
As at 315t March, 2021 1.68 1.68

As at 31st March, 2022
As at 31st March, 2023
6.1 The Comp; yrhas»:elg‘gé'ed to continue with carrying value of intangible assets under the previous GAAP as deemed cost as at the transition date i.e., 1st April, 2021. Under the previous GAAP, intangible assets
iginal cost {net of accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any).
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7 Other financial assets- non-current

Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
At amortised cost :
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 28.93 28.93 31.95
Total 28.93 28.93 31.95
8  Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
Deferred tax assets 8.1 B - 4,463.27
Deferred tax liabilities 8.1 - - -

- - 4,463.27

Deferred tax assets (net)

8.1 Components of deferred tax assets/ {liabilltles) are as follows

As at 31st March, 2022 Charge/ {credit) recognised In | Charge/ (credit) recognised in As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars
profit or loss equity

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax agsets

Unaborbed brought forward lusses and deprecialion as per Income
TEXAC
Total deferred tax assets - {308.40}) - 308.40
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

Fair valuation of optionally fully convertible debentures 308.40 308.40
Total deferred tax liabilities .- 308.40 308.40
Deferred tax assets/ Habitities (net) - {308.40) 308.40 -

- {308.40) - 308.40

As at 1st Aprll, 2021 Charge/ (credit) recognised In | Charge/ (credit) recognlsed In As at 31st March, 2022

Particulars
profit or loss equity

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Unaborbed brought forward losses and depreciation as per Income 4,463.27

Tax Act

Total deferred tax assets 4,463.27 4,463.27 - -
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities - -
Total deferred tax liabilities - . -
Deferred tax assets/ liabilities {net)

in absence of item wise details on which deferred tax assets (net) has been recognised in the books of accounts as on 1st April, 2021, components of deferred tax related items has not been disclosed

4,463.27 - .

4,463.27 4,463.27 - -

Y

8.1.
above in respect of financial year 2021-2022,

8.2 In accordance with the Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes", deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of business losses and unabsorbed depreciation in the absense of virtual certainity with
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future against which the deferred tax assets can be realised In the normal course of business of the Company. As such, the
Company has reversed the deferred tax assets during the year ended 31st March, 2022 amounting to Rs. 4,463.27 Lakhs which has been recognised in profit or loss.

8.3 Expiry schedule of losses as per Income tax Return on which deferred tax assets is not recognised is as under:

Rs. In Lakhs
Expiry of losses (as per local tax 2023- 2024- 2025- 2026- | 2027- | Beyond
laws) 24 25 26 27 28 5 years | Indefinite Total
i. Business Losses 1,897.40 | 300.43 | 2,381.03 - - 243.77 - |4,822.63

ii. Unabsorbed depreciation - - - - - - 33,995.60 33,995.60

Total 1,897.40 | 300.43 | 2,381.03 - - 243.77 | 33,995.60 38,818.23

9 Other non-current assets

Particulars . Refer note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances 46 - - 12.95
Total - - 12.95

10 Inventories

Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st Aprll, 2021

Raw materials 32.83 50.00 239.18
Finished goods 55.96 37.35 197.64
Stores and spares 23.82 14.42 146.93
Total 112,61 101.77 583.75

10.1 Pursuant to the takeover of the Company by the new management (Refer note no. 46), the management has reviewed the situation and condition of inventories lying as on 9th June, 2021 and valued
the same at net realisable value as per their best estimate considering the factors including obsolescence.
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Trade recelvables

Particulars Refer note no.

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

As at 1st Aprif, 2021

At amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good

2,244.37

2,183.50

2,261.38

Total

2,244.37

2,183.50

2,261.38

Debts due from directors or any officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly
with any other person or debts due from firms or private companies respectively in which any
director of the Company |s a partner or a director or a member

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled on credit terms of 30 to 90 days.

Ageing schedule of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

As at 1st April, 2021

Undisputed trade recelvables
Unsecured, consldered good
Unbiiled dues
Current but not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months
b months-1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

11341

52.54

1.44
1,983.83
276.11

Total (a)

2,261.38

Disputed trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Unbilled dues
Current but not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months
6 months-1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

2,130.96

Total {b)

2,130.96

2,130.96

Total trade recelvables {a+b)

2,244.37

2,183.50

2,261.38

Trade receivables includes Rs. 2130.96 Lakhs, as of March 31, 2023 (31.03.2022 - Rs. 2130.96 Lakhs), and are associated with a party agalnst whom the Company has initiated legal proceedings by
filing an application with the Hon'ble NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, to recover outstanding dues. The NCLT, however, dismissed this application in an order dated August 3, 2023, which occurred after the
balance sheet date. On September 2, 2023, the Company filed an appeal with the Hon'ble NCLAT, Delhi, challenging the NCLT's order, The Company is confident in its ability to fully recover this
amount and, therefore, has deemed it as likely to be collected. Any necessary adjustments to the carrying value will be made in the company's books of accounts based on the final outcome of the
appeal with the Hon'ble NCLAT. As of date of finalisation of the balance sheet, this matter remains subjudice.

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
Balances with banks in current accounts 96.55 185.03 202.11
Balances in liquidators' account - 6.86 -
Cheques on hand 121816 545.00 - -
Total 641.55 195.89 202.11
Represents the cheque received from Holding Company against the advance given by the company in previous year.
Other bank balances
Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
Fixed deposits with banks {having maturity up to 12 months) 650.00 - -
Total 650,00 - -
Qther financial assets- current
Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
At amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to employees - - 6.50
Interest accrued on financial assets 11.14 1.03 1.63
Total 11,14 1.03 8.13
Current tax assets {net)
Particulars . Refer note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
Advance income tax, including tax deducted at source (net of; 15.1 11.79 3.44 17.61
provision}
Total 11,79 3.44 17.61
Advance income tax, including tax deducted at source is net of provision of Nil {31st March, 2022- Nil, 1st April, 2021- Nil)
Other current assets
Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
Advances other than capital advances
Other advances
Advances to suppliers and others 16.1 0.31 545.00 97.27
Balances with government authorities 384,33 812.82 1,517.31
Others
Prepajd’efpe 2.53 - -
Total #AS 387.17 1,357.82 1,614.58
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Equity share capital

Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March, |As at 1st April, 2021
2023 2022

Authorised

45,00,000 (31st March, 2022- 45,00,000; 1st April, 2021- 45,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 450.00 450.00 450,00
450,00 450.00 450,00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

43,60,000 (31st March, 2022- 43,52,240; 1st April, 2021- 43,52,240) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 436.00 435,22 435.22
436.00 435,22 435,22

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Partlculars ) For the year ended | For the year ended

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

As at the beginning of the year 43,52,240 43,52,240

Equity shares cancelled during the year {Refer note no. 17.1.1) (43,52,240) -

Equity shares allotted during the year (Refer note no. 17.1.1) 43,60,000 -

As at the end of the year 43,60,000 43,52,240

During the year, on recelpt of order of Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi Principal Bench, the cancellation and extinguishment of the equity shares held by the erstwhile shareholders and the allotment of
43,60,000 equity shares to Deepak industries Limited and its nominees were given effect in the records.

Tenns/ tights attached to eyulty shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The Company may declare and pay dividends. The
dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors of the Company is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held by equity

shareholders.

Shareholding pattern in respect of Holding/ Ultimate HoldIng Company

Deepak Industries Limited is the Holding Company of the Company.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate equity shares In the Company

As at st April, 2029

As at 315 March, 2073

Name of equity shareholders As at 31st March, 20272

No. of equity shares| % shareholding |No. of equity shares| % shareholding |No, of equity shares| % shareholding
Deepak Industries Limited 43,59,940 100,00% B - - -
Dwarka Buildwell Private Limited - - 6,96,033 15.99% 6,96,033 15.99%
Kamakshi Sitk Mills Private Limited - - 6,96,033 15.99% 6,96,033 15.99%
Dolphin Autoparts Private Limited - - 7,01,769 16.12% 7,01,769 16.12%
Dolphin Spares Parts Private Limited - - 7,06,165 16.23% 7,06,165 16.23%
Tanmay Steel and Alloy Private Limited - - 7,15,071 16.43% 7,15,071 16.43%
Tropical Stee! Private Limited - - 7,87,169 18.09% 7,872,169 18.09%

No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for sale of shares/ disinvestment as at the balance sheet date,

The Company has neither allotted any equity shares against consideration other than cash nor has issued any bonus shares nor has bought back any shares during the period of five years preceding
the date at which the balance sheet is prepared. However, pursuant to the implementation of the sale of the company to the Successful Bidder i.e. M/s. Deepak Industries Limited during the FY 2021-
22, the shareholding of all existing equity shareholders as of the date of the company's sale as a going concern was terminated, and new equity shares of the Company were subsequently issued to

new shareholders,

No securities convertible into equity shares have been issued by the Company during the year except as stated in note no. 19.1

No calls are unpaid by any director or officer of the Company during the year.

Details of shareholdIng of promoters and promoter group

As at 31st March, 2023

Name of the promoters and promoter group No. of equity shares| % shareholding |% change during the
year (Refer note no.
17.9.1)
Deepak Industries Limited 43,59,540 100.00%
Mr. Pradip Kumar Daga 10 0.00%
Mr, Yashwant Kumar Daga 10 0.00% -
Ms, Asha Devi Daga 10 0.00% -
Ms. Nandan( Daga 10 0.00% -
Contransys Private Limited 10 0.00% -
Coplama Products Private Limited 10 0.00% -
Total 43,60,000 100.00% -
As at 31st March, 2022
Name of the promoter No. of equity shares| % shareholding % change during the
year {Refer note no.
17.9.1)
Dwarka Buildwell Private Limited 6,96,033 15.99% .o
Kamakshi Silk Mills Private Limited 6,96,033 15,99% -
Dolphin Autoparts Private Limited 7,01,769 16.12% -
Dolphirp Spares Parts Private Limited 7,06,165 16.23% -
Tanmay Steel and Alloy Private Limited 7,15,071 16.43% -
Tropical Steel Private Limited 7,87,169 18.09% -
Total 43,02,240 98.85% -
As at 1st April, 2021 .
Name of the promoter No. of equity shares| % shareholding % change during the
year
Dwarka Buildwell Private Limited 6,96,033 15.99% -
Kamakshi Silk Mills Private Limited 6,96,033 15.99% -
Dolphin Autoparts Private Limited 7,01,769 16.12% -
Dolphin Spares Parts Private Limited 7,06,165 16.23% -
Tanmay Steel and Alloy Private Limited 7,15,071 16.43% -
Private Limited 7,87,169 18.09% -
43,02,240 98.85% -
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Other equity
Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, |As at 1st April, 2021
2023 2022
Share application money pending allotment 18.2(a) - 436.00 -
Equity component of compound financial instruments 18.2(b) 1,269.93 - -
Reserves and surplus
Capital reserve 18.2(c) 46,787.01 46,351.79 -
Securities premium 18.2{d) 20,945.77 20,945.77 20,945.77
Retained earnings 18.2(e) (64,734.82) {64,437.89) {31,849.41)
Total 4,267.89 ~ 3,295.67 {10,903.64)

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for movement in balances of items of other equity.
Nature and purpose of Items of other equlty B

Share application money pending allotment

During the year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company has issued 43,60,000 equity shares of Rs, 10 each amounting to Rs. 436.00 Lakhs against sale consideration received from Deepak Industries
Limited (the suceessful bidder during the liquidation proceedings). Pending necessary approvals from Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi Bench and filing of relevant forms with Registrar of Companies, Delhi,
the said amount has been kept under "Share application money pending allotment” as on 31st March, 2022. During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the shares have been allotted and disclosed

under "Equity share capital” on receipt of approvals thereupon and update of records with Registrar of Companies, Delhi.

Equity component of compound financial Instruments
Equity componant of compound finangial instrument represents the equity component of Zero Coupon Optivnally Fully Cunver Lible Debenilures, which Is a compound financlal Instrument.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve includes Rs. 46,351.79 Lakhs being the adjustments made pursuant to the order of Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhl Bench dated 7th September, 2022 encompassing necessary write off of
assets/ expenses and the write back of liabilities/ provisions in the Company's financial records. The debit/ credit of Rs. 46,351.79 Lakhs {net) has been adjusted by the Company in the capital reserve

for the year ended 31st March, 2022 as outlined in note no. 46 and Rs. 435.22 Lakhs being the amount of cancellation of equity share capital outstanding as on 31st March, 2022.

Securities pramium
Securities premium represented the amount received in excess of face value of shares on issue and was utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Retained earnlngs
Retalned earnings represents the undistributed pratit/ amount at accumulated earnings of the Company.

Borrowings- non-current

Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March, |As at 1st Aprll, 2021
2023 2022

At amortised cost |
Unsecured

From bodies corporate 46 - ' - 3,529.62
Secured

From HoldIng Company

Zero Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures 19.1,19.2,19.3& 2,177.83 { -

19.4

Total 2,177.83 - 3,529.62

Terms and conditlons of zero coupon optionally fully convertlble debentures
During the year, on receipt of necessary approval from Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi Bench, 3,364 number of Zero Coupon Secured Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures ("SOFCDs") of face value Rs.

1,00,000 each have been issued at par on the following terms and conditions: B
The SOFCDs shall be issued for a tenure of 10 years from the date of allotment or such further period as may be mutually agreed between the Company and SOFCDs holder;

The SOFCDs holder shall have the right to exercise the option to convert any one or more or all of SOFCDs Into equity shares, or alternatively shall also have the right to intimate the Company about its
willingness to not convert any one or more or all of SOFCDs into equity shares;
The holder of SOFCDs shall not be entitled to receive any interest on the face value of the SOFCDs;

Wherein the SOFCDs holder intimates the Company about its willingness to not convert any one or more or all SOFCDs Into equity shares, then the face value of such SOFCDs shall be repayble to
SOFCDs holder within a. period of 30 days from the date of recipt of such intimation from the SOFCDs holder alongwith the assured premium of 5% p.a. ("SOFCDs Redemption Premium") unless

otherwise agreed to between the Company and the SOFCDs holder.
The SOFCDs holder, at any time during the tenure, shall have the right to convert any one or more or all of SOFCDs Into such number of equity shares of Rs 10 each of the Company, which shall give a

minimum annual internal rate of return of 3% from the date of allotment of such SOFCDs.

Nature of security
SOFCDs shall be secured against all the present and future immovable and movable properties of the Company, including land leased to the Company located at Plot No, 5P-501(B), Industrial Area,

Bhiwadi, Rajasthan.
Compound financlal instrument- Zero Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures

Particulars Amount (in Lakhs)
Total value of debentures Issued 3,364.00
Fair value of debentures as on date of allotment 2,094.07
1,269.93

Equity component as on date of allotment {Refer note no. 18)

Debentures being issued at 0% interest rate has been fair valued and differential has been shown as equity component of compound financial instruments under "Other equity". The company has
considered the rate of interest for amortisation at 3% p.a. as the same has been considered by the holding company in its financial statements.

Details of debenture holders are as follows:
Debentureholders As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
No. of debentures | % of debentures | No. of debentures | % of debentures | No. of debentures | % of debentures
held held held held held held
Deepak [ndustries Limited 3,364 100.00% o - ) - ) N N

Provisions- non-current

Refer note no. As at 31st March, | Asat31st March, |As at 1st April, 2021

Particulars
2023 2022

Provision for employee benefits
1.40 - 9.47

oo {o & AS‘S&?Q\\ 1.97 - 0.66

Leave encashment

Total [ &7 R ZAY ’ ) 30.1&42 3.37 - 10.13
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21 Borrowings- current

Particulars

Refer note no.

As at 31st March,

2023

As at 31st March, |As at 1st April, 2021

2022

At amortised cost
Current maturities of long-term debt
Secured term loan from banks

21.1&46

32,125.51

Total

32,125.51

21.1 Loans were secured by the pari passu charge on Industrial Plot No, SP-501 (B) measuring 20003 square meters along with 47000 square feet factory shed, situated at Industrial Area Bhiwadi, Tehseel-
Tijara, District Alwar, Rajasthan, together with all buildings and structures thereon, fixtures, fittings and all plant and machinery attached to the earth or permanently fastened to anything attached to

the earth, both present and future.

22 Trade payables

Particulars Refer note no. As at 31st March, | As at31st March, |As at 1st April, 2021
2023 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.13 - -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 35,47 2801 3,844.55

Total 39.60 28.01 3,844.55

221
available with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers are as follows:

Detalls of dues to suppliers as required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act") based on the confirmation and information

Particulars

As at 31st March,
2023

As at 31st March,
2022

As at 1st April, 2021

1. Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year
a) Principal amount unpaid
b} Interest due

to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year
a) Payment made beyond the appointed date
b) Interest paid beyond the due date

during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

4. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

5. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years

2. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amounts of the payment made

3. The amount ot interest due and payable for the delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day

4,13

22,2 Payment towards trade payables is made as per the terms and conditions of the contract of purchase orders. The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 45 days.

22,3 Ageing schedule of trade payables

Particulars

As at 31st March,
2023

As at 31st March,
2022

As at st April, 2021

Undisputed, micro enterprises and small enterprises
Unbilled dues
Current but not due
Outstanding for followlng periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

Sub-total {a)

Undisputed, creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Unbilled dues :
Current but not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year .
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

12.26
160.22
36.94
3,635.13

Sub-total {b)

3,844.55

Total (a+b)

3,844.55

23.  Other financial liabilities- current

Particulars

Refer note no,

As at 31st March,
2023

As at 31st March,
2022

As at 1st April, 2021

At amortised cost
Premium on debentures
Interest accrued and due on secured loan
Others
Security deposits
Liabilities for accrued expenses
Payable to employees
Liability for capital goods
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others

21,1846

23.1-

0.75
535.18
5.76

0.50
535.18
334

0.91

10,096.69

669.44

531.06

Total

539.93

541.69

11,297.19
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23.1 Details of dues to suppliers as required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act") based on the confirmation and Information
available with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers are as follows:

{Allamount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

As at 31st March, | Asat31st March, |As at 1st April, 2021

Particulars
2023 2022

1. Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year

a) Principal amount unpaid

b} Interest due
2. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Acl alung with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

a) Payment made beyond the appointed date

b} Interest paid beyond the due date

3. The amount of interest due and payable for the delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day|
during the year} but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

4. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

5. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years

24  Other current liabilitles

Refer note no. As at 31st March, | Asat31st March, |As at 1st April, 2021

2023 2022
0.31 - 117

Particulars

Advance received from customers.
Other advances
Advance received against debentures pending allotment 3,364.00 -

Others
Statutory dues (includes gonds and services tax, provident fund, tax deducted at source, etc.} 4.03 4.82 36.53
Total 4.34 3,368.82 37.70

25 Provistons- current

Refer note no. As at 31st March, | Asat31st March, |As at 1st Aprll, 2021

Particulars
2023 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Qraluily 0.01 - 0.06
Leave encashment 0.06 - 0.02
Total 42 0.07 - 0.08
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(All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

26 Revenue from operations

Particulars Refer note no. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Sale of services 337.23 148.28
Sale of Goods - 62.05
Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap 308.65 121.74
Total 645.88 332.07
27 Otherincome
Particulars Refer note no. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost 12.30 1.15
Interest an income tax refund - 0.17
Other non-nperating Income (net of expenses directly attributabie
1o such income)
Misceltaneous income 0.25 -
Total 12.55 1.32
28 Cost of materials consumed
Particulars Refer note no. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Opening stock 10 50.00 239.18
Add: Purchases durlng the year - 10.61
Less: Closing stock 10 32.83 50.00
17.17 199.79

Total

29 Changes in inventories of finished goods

Refer note no.

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Opening stock
Finished goods 10 37.35 197.64
Closing stock
Finished goods 10 55.96 37.35
{Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods (18.61) 160.29
30 Employee benefits expense
Particulars Refer note no. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Salaries and wages 226.15 189.29
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.15 1,55
Staff welfare expense 8.70 2.66
237.00 193.50

Total

30.1 In the opinion of management, there were no long term liabilities refating to the Employees Benefits as on 31.03.2022. Therefore, no accounting and related
disclosures as required by the Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" has been provided for the year ended 31st March, 2022 in these financial statements.

31 Finance costs

Particulars Refer note no. For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest expense on optionally fully convertible debentures 83.76 -
Interest on others 0.01 0.06
Total 83.77 0.06

32 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars Refer note no. For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5 412,89 935.96
Total 412,89 935.96
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{All amount in Rs

. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

33 Other expenses

Particulars Refer note no, For the year ended For the year ended
) 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Consumption of stores and spares 69.03 165.16
Powerand fuel 77.57 49.67
Repair and maintenance
Building 12.25 26.47
Plant and equipment 22.64 -
Freight and handling charges 0.43 1.16
CIRP/ Liquidation Charges to Professional 1.77 108.50
Miscellaneous expenses 33.1 39.45 167.90
Total 223,14 518.86
33.1 Includes auditors' remuneration
Particulars Refer note no. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Fee in respect of:
Statutory audit 2.50 2.50
Total 2.50 2,50
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(All amount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated)

34 Exceptional items

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Provision for impairment in the carrying value of property, pfant and equipment - 26,448.46
Provision for impairment in the carrying value of intangible assets - 1.68
Total (Refer note no. 5.3) - - 26,450.14

35 Taxexpense

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2023 315t March, 2022

Current tax - ) ) -
Deferred tax (Refer note no. 8.2) (308.40) 4,463.27
Total tax expense as per profit or loss {308.40) 4,463.27

35.1 Reconciliation of tax expense

In the absence of taxable profits during the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022, reconciliation ot tax expense has not been provided.

35.2 Amounts recognised directly In equity

Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income but directly debited/ (credited) to equity

Current tax Nil Nil
Deferred tax- charge/ {credit) {Refer note no. 8.1} 308.40 Nii
35.3 Tax lusses
Unused tax losses and depreciation for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 38,818.23 37,386.33
Potential tax benefit @ 26.00% 10,092.74 9,720.45
36 Other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Items that will not be reciassified to profit or loss ‘ - -
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - d
Total - -
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - -
37 Earnings per share
., For the year ended For the year ended

- |Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
{a} Amount used as numerator- Profit/ {loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss 1147 (32,588.48)
{b) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator for computing basic earnings per| 43,56,619 43,52,240
share
(c) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator for computing diluted earnings per| 43,56,619 43,52,240
share
{d) Face value of equity shares Rs. 10 Rs. 10
{e) Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 0.26 (748.77)
{f) Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (Note 37.1) 0.26 (748.77)

371
because they are antidilutive for the period ended 31.03.2023.

38 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(a) Contingent liabilities

Optionally Fully Convertible debentures could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future, but were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

Particulars | As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at-1st April, 2021

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt - - -
{b) Commitments

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
and not provided for (net of advances Rs. NIL (31st March, 2022- Rs. 545,00/
Lakhs, 1st April, 2021- Nil)

Other commitments- Nil {31st March, 2022- Nil, 1st Aprii, 2021- Nil}

39 Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 37 "Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets"

Contingent asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity. During the normal course of business, unresolved claims remain outstanding. The inflow of economic benefits, in
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40 Related party disclosures
Information under ind AS 24 "Related party disclosures"” are as follows:

(I) Name of the related parties and description of relationship °

Deepak Industries Limited {(wilh effect from 7th Seplember, 2022)

{a) lolding Company
{b) Key management personnel ("KMP") Mr. Rakesh Kumar (with effect from 9th June, 2021)
Mr. Khyali Ram (with effect from 9th June, 2021)
Mr. Rajan Dhiman {with effect from 9th June, 2021)
(c} Other related parties with whom the Company had transactions
(i) Enterprises under common control Deepak Industries Limited (with effect from Sth June, 2021 and up to 6th
September, 2022)
Amtek Auto Limited {up to 8th June, 2021)
Castex Technology Private Limited {up to 8th June, 2021)
(1) Transactions with related parties
Key managemeén .
Sl. no.{Nature of transaction/ Name of related party Holding Company ¥ manag t Other related parties
personnei
{i) [Advance received against debentures pending allotment .
Deepak Industries Limited - R .
(3,364.00) (-} )
Issue of debentures against advance as above 3,364.00 -
) ) @]
(i) {Share application money pending allotment
Deepak Industries Limited - - -
{436.00) ) )
issue of shares against application money as above 436.00 - -
) ) )
(iti) |Advance given
Deepak Industries Limited - - -
(545.00) ) ()
{iv) |sale .
Amtek Auto Limited - - -
(W) ) (84.58)
{v) |Purchases
Castex Technology Private Limited - - -
() ) (12.53)
(vi) |Balances outstanding
Equity share capital
Deepak Industries Limited 436.00 - -
¢ ) )
[ [] [
Share application money pending allotment
Deepak Industries Limited - - -
{436.00) {-) {-)
{1 8] .
Zero Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures [Refer note no. 19 & 40(V)]
Deepak industries Limited 2,177.83 - -
) ) )
) ! [
Advance received against debentures pending allotment
Deepak industries Limited - R .
(3,364.00) () )
[ [ [
Advance given
Deepak Industries Limited - - -
(545.00) {-) (-)
[ [] {-]
Cheques on hand
Deepak tndustries Limited 545.00 - -
) ) o
[l [ &
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Key management N
Si. no.|Nature of transaction/ Name of related party Holding Company Y 6 Other related parties
personnel
Balarices outstanding (contd.)
Receivahles
Amtek Auto Limited - -

) & (2,146.31)
8] [ [2,216.62)

Payables

Castex Technology Private Limited . -

) ) X
[ g 3,172.60]

Footnote:

Figures in () pertain to balances as at 31st March, 2022

Figures in [] pertain to balances as at 1st April, 2021

{1} No remuneration/ sitting fees has been paid/ payable to KMP during the reporting period.
{IV} Other notes:

i) The transactions with related parties have been entered at an amount which are not materially different from those on normal commercial terms.

i) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No provision for bad or doubtful debts has been recognised in current year and previous year in respect of

the amounts owed by related parties.

(V) The Company has issued 3,364 number of Zero Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures of Rs. 3,364.00 as above which, as required in terms of Ind AS 109 "Financial
instruments"”, has been fair valued to Rs. 2,094.07 Lakhs and corresponding effect has been given in equity component of compound financial instruments under "Other equity”.
Carrying value of such debentures as on 31st March, 2023 is Rs. 2,177.83 Lakhs.

41  Segment reporting

{a) The Company is engaged primarily in the business of "Processing of machine parts" required in automobile industries and all other activities are incidental thereto. Therefore,
according to the management, this is the only operating business segment as envisaged in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments". Thus, no separate segment information is disclosed for
primary business segment.

(b) Geographical information

(i)  Revenues from external customers
Particul For the year ended For the year ended

articulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations {Refer note no. 26)
India 645.88 332.07
Overseas - -
Total 645.88 332.07
(i)} Non-current assets {other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 As at 1st April, 2021
India 3,383.23 3,795.27 31,193.58
Overseas - - -
Total 3,383.23 3,795.27 31,193.58

(¢c) Information about major customers

Revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 percent or more of the Company's revenue is as follows:
Rs. In Lakhs

Revenue from customer Revenue from customer as a % of total revenue

Name of the customer - For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Customer 1 277.22 14,60 42.92 4.40
Customer 2 264.87 78.49 41.01 23.64
Customer 3 70.24 116.09 10.88 34.96
Customer 4 2.35 79.60 0.36 2397
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42 Employee henefits:
As per Ind AS- 19 "Employee benefits", the disciosures of Employee benefits are as follows:

Defined contribution plan:
The contributivns L defined contribution plan, recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as under :

Defined contribution plan

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Contribution to provident fund (including pension)
Contribution to National Pension Scheme

Gratuity
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the said Act, an employee who has completed five years of continuance service s entitied to

the gratuity. The gratuity plan provides a lumpsum payment to employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. The level of benefits
depends on the member’s length of service and saldry-al Lhe Lirme of cessation of the employment contract with the Company.

The following tables summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, the funded status and amounts recognised in
the Balance sheet for the said plan: )

a) Details of unfunded post retirement plans are as follows :

Sl. No. | Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended
. 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
1. __|Expenses recognised in the profit or loss:
1 [Currentservice cost 0.60 -
2 [Pastservice cost including curtailment gains/ losses 0.81
3 lInterest on the defined benefit liability - -
4 [Expense recognised in the profit or lass 1.41 -
1l |Other comprehensive income
1 JActuarial {gain)/ loss arising from:
- change in financial assumptions - -
- changes in experience adjustments - -
2 |Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other comprehensive income - -
i), _jChange in present value of defined benefit obligation:
1 {Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year - -
2 [Interest expense -
3 |Current service cost 0.60 -
4 |Past service cost including curtailment gains/ losses 0.81
5 |Benefits paid - -
6 {Actuarial (gain})/ loss arising from:
- changes in financial assumptions - -
- changes in experience adjustments - -
7 Ipresent value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 1.41 -
IV. _|Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance sheet as at the year end:
1 |Present value of defined benefit obligation ) 1.41 -
2 |Liability recognised in Balance sheet 1.41 -
- Current 0.01 -
- Non-current 1.40 -
V. |Actuarial assumptions:
1 [Discount rate (per annum) (in %) 7.34% -
2 [Expected rate of salary increase {in %) 6.00% -
3 |Retirement/superannuation age (in year) 58 -
4 {Mortality rates |ALM 2012-2014 -
VI, _IMaturity profile
Expected cash flows (valued on undiscounted basis):
Within the next 12 months 0.01 -
Between 2 and 5 years 0.40 -
Between 5 and 10 years 1.00 -
Total expected payments 1.41 -
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the balance sheet date (in years) 12.82 -
VI, _|Sensitivity analysis on present value of defined benefit obligations:
Discount rates
0.50% increase (0.05) -
0.50% decrease 0.05 -
Expected rates of salary increases
0.50% increase 0.05 -
0.50% decrease {0.05) -
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapotates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring as at the balance sheet date.
IAl:Sengitivities are calculated using the same actuarial method as for the disclosed present value of the defined benefits obligation at year end.
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(b) Details of other long term benefits are as follows:
(i) Earned leave {unfunded) -
Sl.  [Particulars

Leave encashment (Earned leave)
{Unfunded)

No.
For the year ended | For Lthe year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
I, iComponents of employer expensea:
1 |Current service cost 0.61 -
2 |Past service cast including curtailment gains/ losses 0.98
3 {interest cost - -
4 |Actuarlal (galn)/ loss recognised in the year ) - -
5 |Expense recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 1.59 -
il.__[Change in present value of obligation:
1 IPresentvalue of obligation at the beginning of the year . - -
2 |Interest cost - -
3 |Current service cost 0.61 -
4 {Past service cost including curtailment gains/ losses 0.98
5 |Benefits paid - -
6 |Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year - -
7 |Present value of obligation at the end of the year 1.59 -
Ill.__INet asset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance sheet as at the year end:
1 |Present value of defined benefit obligation 1.59 -
2 |Liability recognised in Balance Sheet 1.59 -
V. {Actuarial assumptions:
1 |Discount rate {per annum) % 7.34%
2 |Expected rate of salary increase % 6.00% -
3 [Ketirement/ superannuation age (year) 58 -
4 |Mortality rates 1ALM 2012-2014 -
V. |Maturity profile
Expected cash flows (valued on undiscounted basis};
Within the next 12 months 0.03 -
Between 2 and 5 years 0.50 -
Between 5 and 10 years 1.06 -
Total expected payments 1.59 -

~ {ii) Sick leave {unfunded)
Sl [Particulars

Leave encashment (Earned leave)
{Unfunded)

No.
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
. {Components of employer expense:
1 |Current service cost 0.19 -
2 |Past service cost including curtailment gains/ losses 0.25
3 |Interest cost - -
4 {Actuarial {gain)/loss recognised in the year - -
S ___|Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.44 -
tl. __|Change in present value of obligation:
1 |Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year - -
2 [Interest cost - -
3 [Current service cost 0.19 -
4 |Past service cost including curtailment gains/ losses ] 0.25
5 |Benefits paid - -
6 [Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year - -
7__IPresentvalue of obligation at the end of the year 0.44 -
Ill._[Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance sheet as at the year end:
1 |Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.44 -
2 |Liability recognised in Balance Sheet 0.44 -
1V. jActuarial assumptions: )
1 |Discountrate (per annum) % 7.34% -
2 |Expected rate of salary increase % 6.00% -
3 {Retirement/ superannuation age (year) 58 -
4 [Mortality rates IALM 2012-2014 -
V. _[Maturity profile
Expected cash flows (valued on undiscounted basis):
Within the next 12 months 0.03 -
Between 2 and 5 years 0.13 -
Between 5 and 10 years 0.28 -
Total expected payments 0.44 -

{c) Risks related to defined benefit plans:
The main risks to which the Company is exposed in relation to operating defined benefit plans are :

Salary inflation risk:
Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

(i) Discount rate:
Reduction in discount rate can increase the defined benefit obligation.

{iii) Mortality and disability:
Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed can impact the defined benefit obligation.
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43
(A)

44

{a

U]

(i

(iii)

{iv)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments- Accounting, Classlfication and Fair value measurements

The acenunting classification of each categary af financial instrument, their carrying ameunt and fair value are as follows:

Particulars Refer note no. Carrying amount and fair value Total
Amortised cost FVTPL FVTOCI
Financlal assets {current and non-current)
Security deposits 7 28.93 - - 2893
(28.93) -) () (28.93)
[31.95] -} [} [31.95]
Trade receivables 11 2,244.37 - - 2,244,37
(2,183.50) ) ) (2,183.50)
{2,261.38} -] [-] {2,261.38]
Cash and cash equivalents 12 641.55 - - 641.55
{195.89) {-) {-) {195.89)
[202.11] [-] {-} {202.11]
Other bank balances 13 650.00 - E 650.00
) () ) {-)
[l [ [l Ll
Other financial assets 14 11,14 - g 11,14
{1.03) ) () (1.03)
[8.13] [ [l [8.13]
Total 3,575.99 | - - 3,575.99
{2,409.35) {) - (2,409.35)
[2,503.57) -] - {2,503.57]
Financial liabilitles (current and non-current)

Borrowings 19&21 2,177.83 “ - 2,177.83
{-) () () ()
[35,655.13] [-] [] {35,655.13]
Trade payables 22 39.60 - - 39.60
(28.01) (-) {-) (28.01)
[3,844.55} {-] {-] [3,844.35]
Other financial liabilities 23 541.69 - - 541.69
(539.93) ) () {539.93)
{11,297.19] [ [ [11,297.19]
Total 2,759.12 - - 2,759.12
(567.94) ) ) (567.94)
[50,796.87] -] -] [50,796.87]

Footnote: )

Figures in {) pertain to balances as at 31st March, 2022
Figures in [] pertain to balances as at 1st April, 2021

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities include trade payables and other financial liabilities and principal financlal assets Include trade recelvables, cash and cash equivalents, othr bank
balances and other financial assets, .

The Company Is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's senior management under the supervision of Board of Directors oversees the management of these risks, The
Company’s financial risks are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk
objectives.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market fluctuations resulting in variation in the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument. The major components of
market risks are currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings.

Forelgn currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company does not have any transactions in
foreign currencies and as such, is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's borrowlng obligation as on
reporting date is limited to borrowings availed from the Holding Company in the form of zero coupon optionally fully convertible debentures which is strategic in nature and accordingly, the
exposure to changes in interest rate is minimal.

Commoadity price risk
The Company being engaged in processing of machine parts for automobile industries, as such, is not exposed to commodity price risk.

Other price risk
The Company is not exposed to any other price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables). The management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Company
periodically assesses the financial reliability of amounts outstanding, taking into account the financial conditions, current economic trends and ageing of amounts receivable.

The carrying amount of respective financial assets recognised in the financial statements represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

The credit risk on cash and cash equlvalents, investment in fixed deposits are insignificant as counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's objective is to maintain optimum level of
liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements at all times. The Company which was under liquidation till previous periods and was under insolvency process has come out from these on
being funds infused by one of the company by way of purchase of shares and debentures and becoming its 100% Holding Company. Currently, the Company is getting job works not as per their
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Liquidity risk tables
The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the

undiscounted cash flows of financial liabllities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows as-at balance

_sheet date:
Maturity analysis of unamortised financlal liabHities
Particulars Carrying value Contractual cash flows Maturity analysis of conFractuaI cash flows
Less than 1 year Between 1 to 5 years More than 5 years
(A} As at 31st March, 2023
{i) Borrowings {Refer note no. 19 & 21) 2,177.83 | 3,364 plus 3% p.a. from|
date of allotment till
date of convession to
equity
(i) Trade payables {Refer note no. 22) 39.60 39.60 39.60 - -
{iii) Other financial liabilities (Refer note no. 23) 541.69 541.69 541.69 - -
Total ] 2,759.12 581.29 581.29 - -
{B) As at 31st March, 2022
(i) Borrowings {Refer note no. 19 & 21} - - - - -
(i) Trade payables (Refer note no. 22) 28.01 28.01 28.01 - -
{iii) Other financial liabilities (Refer note no. 23) 539.93 539.93 539.93 - .-
Total 567.94 567.94 567.94 - -
(C) As at 1st April, 2021 ’
(i) Borrowings {Refer note no. 19 & 21} 35,655.13 35,655.13 35,655.13 - -
(ii) Trade payables (Refer note no. 22) 3,844.55 3,844 55 3,844.55 - -
(i) Other financial liabilities (Refer note no. 23} 11,297.19 11,297.19 11,297.19 - -
Total 50,796.87 | 50,796.87 50,796.87 - -

The Company has current financial assets which will be realised in ordinary course of business, The Company ensures that It has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses

and obligations.

45 Capital management
Risk management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratlo in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. Tha Company's

objective when managing capital is to safeguard their abllity to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stake holders, The
‘Company is focused on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings.

The Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total long-term debt divided by total equlty

Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March, As at 1st Aprll,

2023 2022 2021
Total long-term debt (including current maturities of long-term debt) 2,177.83 - 35,655.13
Total equity 4,703.89 3,730.89 (10,468.42)
Debt-equity ratio 0.46 - (3.41)
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Liquidation proceedings, Certlficate of sale and Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhl Bench order dated 7th September, 2022
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was initiated In respect of Lotus Auto Engineering Limited {"the Company") under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 {Code) by an
order of Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi {(“NCLT"} vide its order dated 1st August, 2018 and Mr. Ashok Kumar Gulla was appointed as Interim Resolution Professional

{IRP). Mr. Ashok Kumar Gulla was subsequently confirmed by the Committee of Creditors (CoC) as Resolution Professional {RP}.

Since no resolution plan came forth, the CoC in its meeting held on 15th November, 2019 resolved to liquidate the Company following which the Hon’ble NCLT on 1st June, 2020 ordered the liguidation of the
Company and Mr. Ashok Kumar Guila was appointed as Liquidator for the Company vide order dated 12th June, 2020.

Durlng the liquldation process, Deepak Industries Limited (“DIL”) filed its proposal for the acquisition of the Company {Corporate debtor) and was adjudged as the successful bidder. On payment of entire sale
consideration of Re. 3,800,00 Lakhe by DIL on 28th May; 2021, tho Liguidator issucd saie oertifieate on 9th june, 2021 for sale of the Company to DIL 83 b going concern without dissolution, which is okin to
resolution plan under IBC,

The Liquidator, subsequent to the issuance of Certificate of Sale, fied an application before the Hon'ble NCLT, Principal Bench, New Delhi, seeking confirmation of sale of the Corporate Debtor as a going
concern, without dissolution, which is akin to resolution plan under IBC. Vide order dated 7th September, 2022, the Hon’ble NCLT confirmed the sale of the Corporate Debtor as a going concern without
dissolution. Thus, effectively from 7th September, 2022, on receipt of order from Hon'ble NCLT, DIL has become the 100% Holding Company.

The sale certificate and the order of the Hon'ble NCLT dated 7th September, 2022, upon impl tation by the mar t, has resulted into following impact;

a, As per the sale certificate, sale proceeds of Rs. 3,800.00 Lakhs from CIRP process has been distributed by the Liquidator as per the waterfall mechanism under section 53 of IBC.

b. All the liabilities of the Corporate Debtor including contingent liabilities and statutory dues has been extinguished and assets got vestet with the Corporate Debtor, unfess specified otherwise.

c. Entire existing share capital of the Company has been cancelled and extinguished and in place of it, the Company has allotted 43,60,000 equity shares to DIL and its nominee at face value of Rs. 10 each.
The effect of the same has been taken in FY 2022-2023, The application money of Rs. 436.00 Lakhs had been shown as share application money pending allotment though the Liquidator provisionally allotted
such shares and by virtue of it, DILand its nominee became beneficial shareholders as on 31st March, 2022. In the financial statements, the [nformation pertaining to the share capital for the year ended 31st
March, 2022 has been shown in the name of previous shareholders only.

d. Issue of 3364 secured optionally fully convertible debentures of face value Rs. 1 Lakh each at par was shown as advance received for issue of debentures as on 31st March, 2022. The effect of the same has
been taken in FY 2022-2023 on allotment thereof.

e. Change in control of the Corpcrate Debtor by suspending existing directors and appointing new directors.

f. As per Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi Bench order, an amount of Rs. 77.75 Lakhs is payable by the Company to a creditor out of the amount to be received from a debtor. Therefore, the same has been shown as
Nil {net} under contingent liabilities.

g. Pursuant to the issuance of certificate of sale dated 9th June, 2021 and arder af Han'hle NCIT, New Delhi 8ench rdated 7th Septemher, 2077 appraving the sale of the Campany as a gaing cancern,
necessary write off of assets and write back of liabilities/ provisions has been carried out in the books of accounts of the Company. Debit or credit being the balancing figure has been adjusted by the

Company in capital reserve which is detailed as follows:

Particulars Amount

(A) Detalils of liabilities written back (income})

Unsecured Loan from bodies corporate 3,529.62
Current maturities of long-term secured debt from banks 28,635.71
Interest accrued and due on secured loan fram banks 10,096.49
Trade payables 4,313.68
Other current liabilities 44.38
Total income 46,619.88
B. Details of assets written off {expenses)

Capital advance 12,95
Security deposit and others 3.92
VAT refundable 56.64
Trade receivables 44,75
Duty under rebate 28.11
TDS receivable 13.55
Other current assets 9.19
Other advances 98.97
Total expenses 268.08
Transfer to capital reserve pursuant to effect of liquidation proceedings (net) 46,351.80

h. Rs. 26,450.14 Lakhs being Impairment in the value of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets has been recognised during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and disclosed as exceptional items.

Non-filing of ROC forms
The company is currently in the process of filing specific statutory forms under the Companies Act, 2013, which were due to be filed for periods upto March 31, 2023. These filings will be completed in due

course.
Mantainance of Fixed assets register and other registers required to be maintained under the Companles Act 2013

The Company is in the process of maintaining the fixed assets register and also identifying the fixed assets which are retired from active use and held for disposal. Further, the Company is also in the process
of maintinaing other registers as prescribed under the Companies Act 2013.

Certain trade receivables, security deposits, loans, advances, other assets and trade payables are subject to confirmation/ reconciliation and consequential adjustments, if any, arising thereof.

In the opinion of the management, property, plant and equipment and current assets have a value on realisation In the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the
financial statements and provision for all iiabilities have been made in the financial statements, which has been relied upon by the auditors.

The Company Is in the process of setting up internal audit department/ team. The company is also in the process of getting secretarial audit conducted for FY 2021-2022.
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52 The Company, neither had any transactions during the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 with companies, which have been struck off by the Registrar of Companles, nor any balance is outstanding from such compantes as at the end of reporting period.

53 Ratlo analysfs and Hs elements
% change With respect to previous Reason for varlance
5l. No, Ratio Numerator Denominator 202z - 2023 2021 - 2022 year {uvhere changs Is more than 25%)

{1} [Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 6.93 0.98 607.14%Increased due to decrease In
current Habilities

{2) |Debt-equity ratio Long term borrowlngs (+}) CurrentjEquity camputed as: Equity sharel aa6 - 100.00%] \ncrassad dus t0 ks wl Ogtionally]

matunties of fong Llerm debt capltal {+) Other equity fully convertible debentures

(3} |Debt service cuywidge 1atio Protit/ {loss) for the year [i.e.[Finance costs {+) Current maturities] 6.07 - 100.00% | Due to Issue of Optionaity fuily

Profit/ (loss) after tax] (+}|of long term debt convertible debentures
and
expense {+) Flnance costs (-
Exceptlonal items
4} |Return on equity ratio Prafit/ {loss) for the vear [Le.lAversge equity 0.27%] 967.37% 199.97%}| Due 1o higher profit
Proflt/ {loss) after taxj
{5) {linventory turnover ratlo Revenue froim aperations | Average inventory 6.03 0.79 663,29%{ Due to Improved turnover of the
. company and decrease In average
Jinventory with the company.

(6) {Trade receivables turnover ratlo Revenue from operations Closing trade receivables 0.29 0.12 141.67%| Due to Improved turnover of the
company.

{7} |Trade payables tuinover ratio Purchases Closing trade payables 5.87 14.17 {58.56%)§Due to decreased purchases and
increased trade payables of the
company.

(8} [Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from operations Working capital 0.19 {2.89) {106.43%}{Due to (ncreased warking capitat.

{9) }Net profit ratio Profit/ (loss) for the year (le.|Revenuefrom operations 0.02 {120.69)| {100,02%} | Due to higher profit

Profit/ {loss} after tax]
(10) [Return on capitai employed . Profit/ (loss) before tax (+) Interest|Capital employed computed as| 0.53% 3.93% (86.41%}{Due to higher profit
on long terin borrowings [-}}Equity () Intangible assets (+) Long]
Exceptional Rems term borrowings (+} Current]
maturities of lang term debt {+)/(-}
Deferred tax liabilities/ deferred tax|
assets
11 kRe(um on investments Not applicable
) with the ding, whether recorded

54

No funds have been advanced of loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or In any other personls) or entitylles), Including forelgn entities {
In writing or otherwise, that the Intermedlary stall lend or Invest In party identifted by o on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any paity(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or

indirectly tend or invest in other persons or entities identified by o on behalf of the Fuoding Party {“Ultimate Beneficlaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

etc,

55 Flirsttime adoption of Indian

Explanation of transltion to Ind AS

together with the comparative figures for the year ended 315t March, 2022, as desciibed {n the suninaly of significant accounting policies.

In preparing these financial statements, the Compiany’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1st April, 2021, Le. the date of transltion to Ind AS.

These (inancial statements, for the year ended 31st Marcl, 2023, are the first {inancial statements, the Company has prepared In accordance with Ind AS. Accordingly, the Company has prepared fInanclal statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for year ended 31st March, 2023,

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company and an explanation on how the transitlon from the previous GAAP (o Ind AS has affected its financial statements, Including the Batance Sheet as at 1st April, 2021 and the financial statements for the year ended 31st

March, 2022,

Set out below are the applicable ind AS 101 optional exemptions and inandatoly exceptions applled in the transition from the previous GAAP 1o Ind AS:

“Leases”. Under the previous GAAP, Property, plant and equipment were stated at their ariglnal cost {net of P
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for intangible assets as recognized under the previous GAAP as deemed cost as at the tansition date. Under the previous GAAP, intangible assets were stated at its otiginal cost, net of accumulated amortization and

impaliment.

Reconcillation In terms of lnd A5 101 "First time adoption of Indlan Accountlng Standards”

{i}  Reconclliation of Equity a5 at 31st March, 2022 and 1st Aprll, 2021

and

The Company has elected to continue with carying value of all Property, plant and equipment under the previous GAAP as deemed cost as at the transitlon date i.e. 1st April, 2021, as adjusted for the effect of depreclation on land- right of use as per the provislons of Ind AS 116

jParticulars As at 315t March, 2022 {end of last pariod presented under previous GAAP) As at 1st Aprll, 2021 {date of transition :
As per Previous GAAP Effect of transitlon to Ind AS As per Ind AS As per Previous GAAP Effect of fransition to Ind AS AsperInd AS
ASSETS
Non:current assots
{a) Property, plant and equipment [Refer note no. S5(b){vI}{A)] 4,626.89 {831.62). 3,795.27 31.986.62 {807.67) 31,178.95
(b) intanglble assets {Refer note no. S5{b){vi)(A}] - - . 168 - 168
{c) Financial assets
Other financial assets 28.93 - 28.93 31.95 - 31.95
{d} Deferred tax asseis {net) - - - 4,463.27 - 4,463.27
(e} Other non-current assets . - - 12,95 - 12.95
Total non-current assets 4,655.82 (83162 382420 36,496.47 {807.67} 35,688.80
Current assets
(a) inventories 101.77 - 101.77 583.75 - 583.75
{b) Financial assets
{1} Trade 1eceivables 2,183.50 - =~ 2,183,50 2,261.38 - 2,261.38
{iii} Cash and cash equivalents 195.89 - 195.89 202.11 202.11
(lit} Other financlal assets 1.03 - 1.03 8.13 - 8.13
{c} Cursent tax assets (net) 3.44 - 3.44 17.61 - 17.61
{d) Other current assets 1,357.82 - 1,357.82 1,614.58 - 1,614.58
Total current assets .3,843.45 3,843.45 4,687.56 - 4,687.56
TOTAL ASSETS 8,499.27 7,667.65 41,184.03 _{807.67}/ 40,376.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQuUiTY
{a) Equity share capltal 435,22 435.22 435.22 435.22
{b) Other equity [Refer note no. S5{b){vil{A)} 4,127.29 3,295.67 {10,095.97) {807.67) {10,903.64)|
TOTAL EQUITY 4,562.51 3,730.89 (9,660,75) (807.67) {10,468.42
LIABILITIES
Non-current ljabjlities
{a) Financial labililies
Borrowings - - - 3,529.62 - 3,529.62
{b} Provisfons - - - 10.13 - 10.13
Total non-current Habllitles -~ - - 3,539.75 - 3,539.75
A=
Cutrent Habliities
{a} Financial Ifabilities
{i) Borrowings - - 32,125.51 - 32,125.51
(if} Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - - -
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 28.01 - 28.01 3,844.55 - 3,844.55
enterprises and small enterprises
{iii} Other tinanclal liabititles 539.93 - 539.93 11,297.19 11,297.19
{b} Other current Ifablliltes 3,368.82 3,368.82 37.70 - 3770
{c} Provisions - - - 0.08 - 0.08
Total current liabliities 3,936.76 - 3,936.76 47,305.03 - 47,305.03
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,936.76 - 3,936.76 50,844.78 - 50,844.78
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABHLITIES 8,499.27 {831.62) 7,667.55 41,184.03 (807.67} 40,376.36
(i} Raconclliation of total agulty as on 31st March, 2022 and 1st Aprii, 2021
Particulars As at 315t March, 2022 As at 15t Aprli, 2021
Total equity under Previous GAAP 4,562.51 (9,660.75),
|Adjustments for
Oepreciation charge on land- right of use {Refer note no. SS(LJWINAN 5 (807.67)
Total equity under Ind AS 3.730.89 {10,468.42]
{lii} Raconclliation of Statemant of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022
|Particulars ' For tha year ended 31st March, 2022
" As par Previous GAAP. Effect of transition to Ind AS As per Ind AS
INCOME
Revenue from operations 332,07 - EEPN )
Other income 132 - 132
TOYALINCOME 333.39 - 333,33
EXPENSES
Cost of materlals cansumed 199.79 - 199,79
Changes in Inventorles of finished goods 160.29 160.29
Employee benefits expense 193.50 - 193.50
Finance costs 0.06 - 0.06
912,01 2395 935.96

Depreciation and amortisation expense
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(iv)

v}

tvi}
A

)

5

<

Ollrer Lutspreliensive ncolng
- | Total comprehensiva income under Ind AS

{Allamount in Rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated|
518.86

518.86 |
1,984.53 | ,008,46 |
{1,651.12) 11,875.07)]
- . 26,450.14 |
Loss) before tax {3,651.12 26,474.09) !18,115.21“
Tax expel
Current tax - - -
Deferred tax 4,488.27 - A,4b3.01
Trtal tax o¥pence 488327 . 4,463.2
tLoss) far the year {6,144.39) {26,874.09)] iSZ,SB!.QS ’
Other comprehensive income.
1tems that will not be reclassilied to profit or loss - - .
ftems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - -
Income tax relating to
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - -
ttems that will be reclassifted to profit of loss - - -
Total other comprehenslve Income {net of tax] - _
Total comprehenslve incoms for the year {comprising {loss) for the year and other comprehensive Income for the year) {6,114.39)| {32,588.48))
Raconcillation of total comprehanslve Incoma for the year ended 315t March, 2022
Particulars For tha year ended
31st March, 2022
Net profit/ {loss) under Previous GAAP
Adjustmants for
Depreciation charge on land- right of use [Refes nate no. S5{b){vilfAN

Impairment in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and intagible assets being routed through profit or loss Instead of capital reserve [Refer note no. $S{bj{vi}{&
NGOt protit/ (133] URder lnd AL A

There is no impact on the Statement of Cash Flows for Ule year ended 315t March, 2022 due ta adaption of Ind AS.

Footnotes to tha reconcillation of equity as at 1st April, 2021 and 315t March, 022 and Statament of Profit and Loss for the year anded 315t March, 2022
Property, plant and aquipment and Intanglble assats

Undes Ind AS, the Company has elected to opt for cost model with respect to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and has continued with the carrying value of all property, plant and equipment and intangible assets under the previous GAAP as deemed cost as at the

transition date l.e. 1st Aprf, 2021, as adjusted for the effect of depreclation on land- right of use as per the provislans of Ind AS 116 “Leases”.

Impalrmant In the carrying valua of property, plant and equipmant and Intangibla assets

Unde ind AS, the Company has elected 10 account for impalrment in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets In profit or loss instead of capital reserve as per the provisions of refevant Ind AS.
Comparative figures of the prevlous perlods as reported under Previous GAAP have been regrouped/ rearranged and dis¢losed wherever applicable to conform with financlal statements of the curient year prepared under Ind AS.

The financial statements for the year ended 315\ March, 2023 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 05th Spectember, 2023 and are subfect {9 the adoption by the shareholders In the ensulng Annual Gieneral Meeting

As per our report of even date attached

For KBTG and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 2494
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